
City of Mora 
Kanabec County, Minnesota 

Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

 
Mora City Hall 
101 Lake St. S 

Mora, MN 55051 

 
 

 

Tuesday, May 16, 2023 6:30 PM Mora City Hall 
 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Roll Call 
3. Adopt Agenda (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Council members may add 

items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.) 
4. Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon by 

one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consent agenda.) 

a. City Council Meeting Minutes – April 18, 2023 
b. April 2023 Claims 
c. Gambling Permit – International Lions Club of Mora   
d. Special Event Permit – Lindquist Auction 
e. Accept Restricted Donations 2023-526 

5. Open Forum (Individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen 
(15) minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action on 
items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

6. Special Business 
a. 207 Maple Ave W, Don Farrell 
b. Juneteenth – Resolution No. 2023-521 
c. Financial Management Plan Street – Ehlers    

7. Public Hearings 
a.    None 

8. New Business 
a. Community Survey – Resolution No. 2023-522 
b. Conditional Use Permit - Solar – Mora Elementary School Resolution No. 2023-523 
c. Conditional Use Permit – Solar – Mora High School Resolution No. 2023-524 
d. Landscape & Driveway Deposit Forfeitures and Transfer of Funds 
e. Kanabec County Maintenance Agreement Resolution No. 2023-525                                                   

Oslin Road, S. Pine Ridge Road and North Brookview Drive 
9. Old Business 

a. Highway 65 Turn Lane – SEH 
b. Road Grader Fund Transfer 

10. Communications 
a. KCSO Monthly Report – April 2023 
b. Park Board Meeting Minutes – May 2023 

11. Boards and Commission Reports 
a. Councilmember Anderson 
b. Councilmember Broekemeier 
c. Councilmember Shepard 
d. Councilmember Youngquist 
e. Mayor Mathison 
f. City Administrator 

12. Adjournment 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 18, 2023 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Jake Mathison called to order the regular meeting of the 
Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, April 18, 2023 in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM 
 

2. Roll Call: Mayor Mathison, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Kyle Shepard, Sadie Broekemeier 
and Dave Youngquist. 
 
Staff Present: Glenn Anderson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services 
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Jeff Krie Parks and Recreation Coordinator, Caleb 
Christenson Building Official, Mandi Yoder Human Resources, and Kelly Christianson Accountant. 
 

3. Adopt Agenda: Mathison requested the removal of item 12 Closed Session and addition of item 
6d Tootsie Roll Weekend Proclamation. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Anderson, 
and unanimously carried to adopt the agenda as amended.  
 

4. Consent Agenda: MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously 
carried to approve the consent agenda as presented.  
 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2023 
b. Work Session Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2023 
c. Claims March 2023  
d. Accept Restricted Donations Resolution No. 2023-421 
e. Music in the Park Grant 
f. Mobile Food Unit License – Thai 1 on Kitchen  

 
5. Open Forum:  No one spoke at open forum. 

 
6. Special Business 

a.    Housing and Redevelopment Authority Update – Jack L’Heureux provided an update on 
the Housing and Redevelopment Authority and summarized the financial challenges that 
occurred during 2019-2020 and the challenges during the COVID-19 Pandemic. He 
thanked the City Council for their support which contributed to the approval of two 
loans from the city to the HRA to improve the HRA’s cashflow and working capital. 
L’Heureux recognized the staffing challenges the HRA faced and loss of intellectual 
knowledge during staff turnover and wanted to publicly thank Lindy Crawford for her 
dedication and efforts that contributed to the financial stability. He also wanted to 
recognize Adrian Bixby and Anthony Kiewel for their talent and implementation of cost 
savings.  The mission of the HRA is to provide affordable housing in the County, City and 
surrounding community.  

b.    Professional Services – Civil Attorney: The City Council approved the continued 
Professional Services with Campbell Knutson for Civil Attorney and appointed Leah Koch 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 18, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 
 

as the City’s attorney in response to Joel Jamnick’s retirement. The City has received 
services for over 20 years from Campbell Knutson a firm that specializes in Municipal 
Law. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to 
continue professional services with Campbell Knutson and appoint Leach Koch as the 
City of Mora’s Civil Attorney. 

c.    Approve Transfers Noted Resolution No. 2023-422 – The Council approved the following 
resolution: 
                   RESOLUTION NO. 2023-422 
               A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
        APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF MONIES FROM DEBT SERVICE FUND TO THE FUTURE          
                                  IMPROVEMENT FUND (SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION).  
 
During 2022, the City paid off the 2011A Series, General Obligation Street 
Reconstruction Bond based on the scheduled date and monies remained in that fund 
after the bond was paid off. The transfer would add additional revenue for the Fox Run 
Development Park Project CIP 5202-2021-01. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by 
Shepard and unanimously carried to approve Resolution No. 2023-422 transferring 
monies from the Debt Service Fund to the Future Improvement Fund as presented.  
 

d.    Tootsie Roll Weekend Mayoral Proclamation: Mayor Mathison declared April 28- April 
29th Tootsie Roll Weekend on behalf of the Knights of Columbus Mora Chapter. Past 
Grants for the Annual Statewide Fundraiser went to Mora Special Athletes for Youth, 
Mora Branch of Industries Incorporated, Camp New Hope in McGregor and Camp 
Confidence in Brainerd.  
 

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings. 
 

8. New Business: 
a.    Harrison Property Offer – The City Council reviewed a proposal to purchase two parcels 

totaling 23 acres of privately owned property along the Snake River in the city limits for 
$600,000. The property aligned with the proposed Trail Plan in the 2021 Comprehensive 
Plan. The property owner, Mr. Bob Harrison, previously indicated he was unwilling to 
offer an easement if the city were to decline as it could negatively impact on the sale for 
potential buyers. The Kanabec County Auditor’s 2022 Estimated Market Value for the 
Parcel 1 (PID 22.00065.00) was $49,700 and Parcel 2 (PID 22.00060.00) was $287,300 
totaling $337,000. The proposal had been previously brought to purchase the property 
in July of 2021 for $500,000 and the city did not purchase the property. The council 
further discussed the parcel and MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by 
Youngquist, and unanimously carried to decline Mr. Harrison’s offer to purchase the 
parcels along the Snake River.  

b.    Airport Taxi-lane Construction Bids: The City Council accepted the Mora Municipal 
Airport Taxi-lane Improvement Project bid and awarded the project to Douglas Kerr 
Underground, LLC. Kohlgraf explained the project was included in the Airport’s Capital 
Improvement Plan and that 90% of the project was funded by the Federal Aviation 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 18, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Administration, and that the remaining 10% would be paid from Minnesota Department 
of Transportation Aviation and the City. There were five bids submitted for the Airport 
Taxi-lane Project and the lowest project bid was $288,376.02 from Douglas-Kerr 
Underground, LLC.. MOTION made by Youngquist, seconded by Shepard, and 
unanimously carried to award Douglas-Kerr Underground LLC the Taxi-Lane 
Improvement Project. 

c.    Airport Fuel Systems Upgrade – The Council approved a Mora Municipal Airport Grant 
Submission for Fuel Line Repair/Replacement. This would reduce the cost of the system 
upgrade. The grant request would secure funding from the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation Aeronautics at 70% cost of the project and $68,090.69. The local 30% 
contribution of $29,181.72 had been budgeted for. Kohlgraf explained the current 
system has exceeded its useful life and the grant would reduce costs and ensure 
continued use of the fuel system. MOTION Made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson 
and unanimously carried to approve the Airport Fuel Systems upgrade.  

d.    Dual Burial Cemetery Rate – Fee Schedule Amendment- Kohlgraf brought forward a 
request to add a dual burial administration fee for $80.00 to cover additional paperwork 
for registration and archives when there are two burials at the same time at the same 
grave. MOTION Made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried 
to approve the dual burial cemetery rate and fee schedule amendment. MOTION made 
by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to approve the verbiage to 
define dual burial.  

e.    Airport Runway TEMP Contract - The Council approved a proposal for a 2023 Triggering 
Event Master Plan (TEMP) contract proposal from SEH. The airport is in the design 
process for work to be completed on the Runway Construction Project of runway 35-17 
due to excessive joint issues. The TEMP proposal from SEH provides future justification 
for runway repairs to the Federal Aviation Administration. Kohlgraf explained the 
Triggering Event Master Plan cost $54,800 and 90% would be covered by the FAA, 5% 
covered by the Minnesota Department of Transportation and 5% covered from local city 
funds. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded Youngquist and unanimously carried to 
approve the Airport Runway TEMP contract.  

f.    Airport Runway Grant: The City Council approved the grant submittal for an Airport 
Runway Grant. Kohlgraf explained this runway project was on the Airport’s Capital 
Improvement Plan. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Broekemeier and 
unanimously carried to move forward with the grant application submittal from SEH.  

g.    Airport Taxi lane Grant Application – The Council approved the grant submittal for taxi 
lane improvements. Kohlgraf explained this item was on the Airport’s Capital 
Improvement plan and the grant application would provide needed funds. MOTION 
made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to approve the 
Airport Taxi Lane Grant Application.  

h.    Airport Fuel System Repair Contract SEH – The Council accepted the Fuel System Repair 
Contract with SEH to improve the out-of-date fuel system at the airport. Kohlgraf 
explained the project was listed in the Capital Improvement Plan and needed to be 
complete before the taxi-lane construction project for cost savings. MOTION was made 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 18, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 
 

by Anderson, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to approve the 2023 Fuel 
Systems Contract with SEH.  

9. Old Business:  
a.    Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office Contract:  The Council appointed Dave Youngquist as 

the City Council Committee member for the annual Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office 
Contract Review. Per the contract the city and county representatives will meet in April 
each year to review the contract. 

b.    Driver’s License Committee Follow-up – Mathison, Shepard and Glenn Anderson 
provided a summary of Driver's License Committee and discussion of joint operation for 
Driver’s License and Vehicle Services with Kanabec County. Based on information 
provided during the comprehensive review of the services, the committee within the 
City did not believe it was financially feasible to move forward with the business 
opportunity. Commissioner Alison Holland, a committee member explained that the 
Kanabec County Commissioners would be open to other ideas to provide the service. 
The committee further explained it would be more profitable for a private business and 
that there had been interest from a member of the community. MOTION made by 
Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier to not move forward with the business purchase.   

c.    9th Street Highway 65 Turn Lane Update – Greg Anderson of SEH provided an update on 
the 9th Street Turn Lane on Highway 65. He stated the project plans had been updated 
to MnDOT’s requirements the day prior and the project should begin early summer as 
planned. 
 

10. Communications: 
The City Council reviewed the monthly communications. Christianson presented the 1st Quarter 
2023 financial statement and highlighted the City’s current investments and fund balances for 
the 1st Quarter of 2023.  

a.   Quarterly Financial Report 1st Quarter 2023  
b.   KCSO Monthly Report - March 2023  
c.   MAFD Monthly Report – March 2023 
d.   Park Board Meeting Minutes 
e.   EDA Minutes – March 7, 2023 and March 17, 2023 

 
11. Reports 

a.   Councilmember Anderson: Extended a thank you to staff for the annual employee 
recognition dinner. Thanked staff for an update on the city website.  

b.   Councilmember Broekemeier: Commended Julie Krone and the marketing of the North 
County Bottle Shop for summer. The East Central Cable Commission would meet the 
following week in Harris, MN. 

c.   Councilmember Shepard: Positive feedback on the parks and thanked city staff for a 
fantastic job. 

d.   Councilmember Youngquist: Nothing new to report. Looking forward to the upcoming 
Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office committee.  

e.   Mayor Mathison: Nothing new to report. 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 18, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 
 

f.   City Administrator: Anderson provided an update on staff email communication with 
questions from the council and how to properly address without an open meeting 
violation. Brought up the employee recognition dinner on April 19th at Freddie’s. Stated 
the Mora Area Fire Department water tender had arrived. City Halls roof replacement 
was complete. Reminded council of the early bird registration for the League of 
Minnesota Cities Annual Conference.  
 

12. Adjournment:  MOTION by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:07 PM. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

______________________________________ 
City Clerk 

































Item No. 4d 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: May 16, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie Activities & Recreation Coordinator 
RE: Lindquist Personal Property & Real Estate Auction 

 
SUMMARY 
Staff is asking City Council to approve the Special Event Permit from Byron Robyn to close off S. Lake Street 
between Forest Ave E. and Howe Street for the Lindquist Personal Property & Real Estate Auction.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Auctions by Robyn/Byron Robyn is holding a Real Estate Auction for the Lindquist Personal Property on 129 
Forest Ave E., Mora, MN 55051 on June 24, 2023.  The auction will start at 9:00am and end time is at 7:00pm.    
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

• Traffic control devices to close off S. Lake Street between Forest Ave E. & Howe Street and will be 
supplied by the City of Mora and must be used.  Please contact for times of delivery and pick-up of 
barricades.  Barricades must be set during event.  Accommodate properties on the south end of Lake 
Street.    

• Garbage must be cleaned up after event.    
• Certificate of Liability Insurance must be provided before event.  
• If bringing in Food Trucks this falls under the responsibility of applicant.   

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the Special Event Permit for Auctions by Robyn to hold the Real Estate Auction for 
Lindquist Personal Property and to close off S. Lake Street between Forest Ave E. & Howe Street.     
 
 
Attachments 
Special Event Permit 
   













Item No. 4e 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: May 16, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kelly Christianson, Accountant 
RE: Accept Restricted Donations  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has received the following donations: 
 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: 
Neighborhood National Bank $500.00 
  
  
  

  
As required by MN State Statute, restricted donations must be officially accepted by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept donations by approving Resolution 2023-526 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 2023-526 



Resolution No. 2023-526 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
ACCEPTING RESTRICTED DONATIONS  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mora is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal property 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is specifically 
authorized to accept gifts. 
 
WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set forth 
below to the city, and the terms or conditions of the donations, if any, are as follows: 
  

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 

Neighborhood National Bank $500.00 Donation to 2023 Fall Fest 
   
   
   
   

 
WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as allowed 
by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
that: 
 

1. The donations described above are accepted and shall be used to establish and/or operate 
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law. 

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the city’s 
receipt of the donor’s donation. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member ____________________. 

 
Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 16th day of May 2023. 

 
  ______________________________________  
ATTEST:  Jake Mathison, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
 Natasha Segelstrom, City Clerk 



Item No. 6b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date May 18, 2023 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
RE Juneteenth 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will recognize Juneteenth as a holiday and city offices will be closed on June 19, 2023 in 
observance of the new holiday. Juneteenth recognizes the date on which slavery was abolished in the United 
State. With June 19th recognized as a state holiday, no further business could be conducted on a state holiday. 

BACKGROUND 
On February 3, 2023 Governor Tim Walz signed SF13 into law with an effective date of August 1, 2023. With 
the law approval, this would be an observed holiday for the City of Mora in June of 2024. 

Since the law approval, a new provision contained in both the House and Senate omnibus policy bills would 
make Juneteenth effective June 19 of this year, requiring observance. 

If/when the provision becomes a law, cities will need to consider their existing schedule to incorporate the 
provision recognizing Juneteenth as a holiday in which would require no public business to be conducted.  

Chapter 1809.1 Holiday Leave 

(C) Schedule. The Employer observes the following eleven (12) holidays.

Holiday Observance 
New Year's Day January 1st 
Martin Luther King's Birthday Third Monday in January 
President's Day Third Monday in February 
Good Friday Friday before Easter 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Juneteenth    June 19            
Independence Day July 4th 
Labor Day First Monday in September 
Columbus Day Second Monday in October 
Veterans' Day November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November
Christmas Day December 25th 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

MOTION to approve Resolution No. 2023-521 Establishing Juneteenth as a City Holiday. 
MOTION to approve revision to the personnel policy recognizing June 19 as an observed holiday. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-521 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
 ESTABLISHING JUNETEENTH AS A CITY HOLIDAY 

 
 

WHEREAS, Juneteenth has been recognized as a new federal holiday celebrating freedom from 
slavery in the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Minnesota outlines holidays in State Statute; and on February 3, 2023, 
Minnesota has recognized Juneteenth as a holiday; and  
 
WHEREAS, a provision in the State of Minnesota’s House and Senate omnibus policy bills would 
make Juneteenth effective June 19 of this year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mora wishes to establish Juneteenth as a City holiday to commemorate 
the end of slavery in the United States; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council establishes Juneteenth (June 19) as a 
City of Mora holiday with the closure of City offices; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the date and rules of observance of the holiday shall be as 
specified in Minnesota Statutes §645.44, and personnel policy Chapter 1809.1 Holiday Leave 
will recognize Juneteenth as a holiday and observance shall be June 19. 
 
 
Passed and duly adopted by the Council of the City of Mora this 18th day of May 2023.  
 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Jake Mathison, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________ 
Natasha Segelstrom, City Clerk  



Item No. 6c 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date 5/16/2023 
To Mayor and City Council 
From     Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 

Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 
Joe Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 

RE Capital Improvement Street Plan / Financial Plan 

SUMMARY  
The City Council will discuss the approval of a long-range financial management plan to accompany the Capital 
Improvement Street Plan.  

BACKGROUND 
In 2022 the City Council and PUC approved a Capital Improvement Street Infrastructure Plan to assist with the 
prioritization of long-range street improvements and infrastructure updates. At the February 21, 2023 Council 
meeting, the council approved the final copy of the Capital Improvement Street Plan from SEH. The plan 
provides identified problem areas throughout the city on the existing pavement and curb of the streets, 
reviews the sanitary sewer collection, water distribution and storm sewer for project groups and street mill 
and overlay. 

OPTIONS AND IMPACTS 
Financial Management Plan:  Ehlers can prepare a comprehensive financial plan that includes 
streets, other city initiatives, capital spending, and new staffing. We will look at the debt service 
funds plus provide solutions to resolving the negative fund balances in the capital project funds. In 
addition, this plan will include the Future Improvements Fund and the Fire Equipment Fund to 
ensure they have enough future funding. The estimated cost is $19,500. This includes two facilitated 
discussions with the City Council. 

For the 2023 Budget, $20,000 has been budgeted for a long-range financial plan under professional 
services misc. in the General Fund, Finance 101-41520-312. Once implemented, the street 
infrastructure plan, and assist with long-range planning for street improvements, negative fund 
balance solutions and provide the city with a stable tax levy.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve Financial Management Plan not to exceed $20,670. 

Attachments: 
Ehlers Proposal 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

• 

Model Inputs: CIP, 
Base Financial 
Information, 

Capital Needs and 
Growth

Results: Individual 
Fund Cashflow 

Projections

Decision Making: 
Master Model that 
shows impacts of 
financial decisions



 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 



 



Item No. 8a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date May 16, 2023 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE 2022 Community Survey 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will review the 2022 community survey.  

DISCUSSION 
Since 2011, the city has elected to participate in a program sponsored by the Office of the State Auditor (OSA) 
to survey the public to measure the city’s performance in a number of areas. In addition to feedback from the 
public, the city also receives additional local government aid for completing the survey, approximately $525. 

The City distributed the 2022 survey in two formats: 
1. A paper version was distributed in the January 2023 city newsletter which is mailed with the utility 

bills; Utility customers receiving e-mail bills also receive an electronic version of the newsletter with 
their bill.

2. An online version which was posted on the city website and via the city’s Facebook page.

The city received 181 responses to the 2022 Survey, which is 65 more than last year. 

Attached is the final report with comparisons to the previous two years as well as written comments. In order 
to receive the additional local government aid, the city is required to adopt a resolution and inform the public 
of the performance measurement results (resolution attached). We will inform the public of the results 
through the city newsletter, website and social media. 

Survey Highlights: 
• This year the city offered an online version of the survey. An online version of the survey was only

offered in 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2022. The 2022 online survey received 68 responses. This online
version is distributed to any who wish to participate – not just those who receive the city 
newsletter/utility bills; the survey results show a higher number persons participating in the survey
that do not live within the city limits, but may live in the surrounding townships. (Page 7)

• Responses are remarkably consistent from year to year, with few major shifts in perception. Notable
shifts can be seen in these areas:

o More respondents rating their “overall feeling of safety in the city” as “Excellent” or “Good”
compared to 2021 (Page 10)

o Fire protection services were also rated higher than 2021. The number of respondents rating
quality of fire protection services as “Excellent” increased from 31% in 2021 to 37.5% in 2022.
(Page 11)



Memorandum 

5/9/2023 2 

o Perceptions on the overall quality of snowplowing was slightly worse than previous years, but
are still positive overall. This year being incredibly snowy – even for Minnesota- may have
contributed to this shift. (Page 13)

o The Mora Aquatic Center had increases in respondents rating the overall condition of the
pool as “Excellent” or “Good.” (Page 16)

It’s important to note a large number of respondents indicated they don’t have computers, internet or the 
technology skills they would need to use the city website. This reaffirms the importance of having a variety of 
communication methods with residents and business owners including both print/paper and digital options.  

In addition to the feedback the city staff receives from this survey, this year we intend to use the survey results 
to identify opportunities to educate the public on city functions. With this we hope to put out information in a 
“Frequently Asked Questions” type of format in the city newsletter, website and through local media to 
educate on topics like street maintenance, how the liquor store contributes to the city general fund, etc. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Review and discuss results of the 2022 community survey. MOTION to adopt Resolution 2023-522 adopting 
the performance measures developed by the Council on Local Results and Innovation.  

Attachments 
2022 Performance Measurement Report 
Resolution 2023-522 



Resolution No. 2023-522

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PERFORMANCE MEASURES DEVELOPED BY THE COUNCIL 
ON LOCAL RESULTS AND INNOVATION 

WHEREAS, Benefits to the City of Mora for participation in the Minnesota Council on Local Results and 
Innovation’s comprehensive performance measurement program are outlined in MS 6.91 and include 
eligibility for a reimbursement as set by State statute; and 

WHEREAS, Any city participating in the comprehensive performance measurement program is also 
exempt from levy limits for taxes, if levy limits are in effect; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of Mora has adopted and implemented at least 10 of the performance 
measures, as developed by the Council on Local Results and Innovation, and a system to use this 
information to help plan, budget, manage and evaluate programs and processes for optimal future 
outcomes; and 

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT, The City Council of Mora will continue to report the results 
of the performance measures to its citizenry by the end of the year through publication, direct mailing, 
posting on the city’s website, or through a public hearing at which the budget and levy will be discussed 
and public input allowed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The City Council of Mora will submit to the Office of the State Auditor the 
actual results of the performance measures adopted by the city. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member 
_________________________ and seconded by Council Member _________________________. 

Voting for the Resolution: ..........  
Voting Against the Resolution: ..  
Abstained from Voting: ..............  
Absent: .......................................  

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 16th day of May 2023. 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Jake Mathison, Mayor  Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 



1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MORA / MORA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
 
 
 
 

2022 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS PROGRAM 

COMMUNITY SURVEY  

ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 

  



3 
 

 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program/Community Survey Report 
 

Introduction 

The Community Survey is part of the city’s Performance Measurement Program sponsored by 
the Minnesota Office of the State Auditor. This voluntary program provides feedback to city 
officials and provides a small increase in Local Government Aid to the city for participating; for 
Mora, this amounts to approximately $525. To learn more about the Performance 
Measurement Program visit the program page on the state auditor’s website at: 
https://www.osa.state.mn.us/forms-deadlines/forms/performance-measurement-program/. 
 
The city received 181 responses to the 2022 Survey, which is 65 more than last year. We 
appreciate the responses we received and hope we can get more next year. Look for the 2023 
survey in the January 2024 newsletter.  
 

Distribution & Responses 

The survey was initially and continues to be distributed as part of the quarterly newsletter. 
While now included in the January edition to survey the prior year, it was first introduced in the 
October newsletter for the first two (2) years. The city distributed approximately 1,900 surveys 
from 2012-2020. The number of responses and response rate are shown in the table below. 
 

Year 
Responses 

Paper Electronic Total 
Surveys 

distributed 
Response 

Rate 

2012 70 N/A 70 1900 4% 

2013 250 N/A 250 1900 14% 

2014 250 N/A 250 1900 14% 

2015 174 N/A 174 1900 10% 

2016 137 16 153 1900 8% 

2017 129 23 152 1900 8% 

2018 117 4 121 1900 6% 

2019 122 N/A 122 1900 6% 

2020 140 N/A 140 1900 7% 

2021 116 N/A 116 1500 8% 

2022 113 68 181 1500 12% 

 
Responses increased dramatically when the newsletter was sent out with the utility bills 
beginning in January 2014 (for the 2013 survey). Utility customers receiving e-mail bills receive 
the newsletter via email with their bill.  
 
The City distributed the 2022 survey in two formats: 

1. A paper version was distributed in the January 2023 city newsletter which is mailed with 
the utility bills; Utility customers receiving e-mail bills also receive an electronic version 
of the newsletter with their bill. 



4 
 

2. An online version which was posted on the city website and via the city’s Facebook 
page.  

 
 

Changes to Survey Instrument 

There have been no changes to the survey document since 2016 when the city added two (2) 
new questions: “Do you read the city newsletter?” and “Do you use the city’s website?” 
 

Survey Responses 
Responses to the nineteen (19) survey questions and comments received are shown in 
Appendix A of this report. There is one page for each question that shows the responses in 
table and graph formats for 2020, 2021 and 2022.  
 
Following this information are comments made by the respondents. Spelling has been 
corrected, but in general the comments appear as they were written. Names, addresses, 
telephone numbers and other private information has been redacted from the comments. 
 

Conclusion 
The city appreciates those who took the time to respond to the 2022 survey and hope more will 
do so in the future. While the city is not able to respond to all of the comments, those with  
questions or concerns can contact city staff at: 
 

 In Person  ...................City Hall/Utilities office, 101 Lake Street South,  
8:00 am to 4:30 pm, Monday through Friday 

 Telephone ..................320.679.1511 (city hall) or 320.679.1451 (utilities office) 

 E-mail .........................info@cityofmora.com 

 Website ......................http://www.ci.mora.mn.us 

 Facebook ....................@cityofmora  
 
Persons can also attend meetings of the city council and other city boards and commissions. 
Their meeting times and places can be found on the city’s website.  
  

mailto:info@cityofmora.com
http://www.ci.mora.mn.us/


5 
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
Survey Responses 

  



6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 

  



7 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 1: Are you a … 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

City of Mora Resident 84.02% 121 80.83% 97 72.93% 133 

Mora Business Owner 9.03% 13 7.50% 9 4.97% 9 

Other 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 2.76% 5 
Resident or Business Owner in a 
Township 6.94% 10 10.00% 12 18.78% 34 

Answered   144   118   0 

Skipped   1   2   181 

Total   145   120   181 

 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

City of Mora Resident Mora Business Owner Other Resident or Business
Owner in a Township

Question 1: Are you a ...

2020 Percent 2021 Percent 2022 Percent



8 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 2: How many years have you lived in the city/township? 

         
 

Years 2022 Count 

<1 to 5 44 

6 to 10 22 

11 to 15 23 

16-20 21 

21-30 24 

31-40 14 

41-50 20 

51-60 10 

61-70 1 

71-80 1 

> 80 0 

Answered 180 

Skipped 1 

Total 181 

  
 
 
 

  



9 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 3: How would you rate the overall appearance of the city?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 8.63% 12 11.21% 13 9.39% 17 

Good 67.63% 94 65.95% 76.5 64.09% 116 

Fair 22.30% 31 19.40% 22.5 25.41% 46 

Poor 0.72% 1 0.86% 1 1.10% 2 

Don't know 0.72% 1 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 

Answered   139   113   181 

Skipped   0   3   0 

Total   139   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 3: How would you rate the overall appearance of the city

2020 2021 2022



10 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 4: How would you describe your overall feeling of safety in the city? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 17.99% 25 19.83% 23 22.10% 40 

Good 64.75% 90 58.62% 68 60.22% 109 

Fair 13.67% 19 16.81% 19.5 14.92% 27 

Poor 2.16% 3 1.29% 1.5 2.76% 5 

Don't know 1.44% 2 2.59% 3 0.00% 0 

Answered   139   115   181 

Skipped   0   1   0 

Total   139   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 4: How would you describe your overall feeling of safety in the city?

2020 2021 2022



11 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 5: How would you rate the overall quality  
of fire protection services in the city? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 28.06% 39 31.03% 36 37.57% 68 

Good 50.36% 70 46.55% 54 45.30% 82 

Fair 4.32% 6 3.02% 3.5 3.87% 7 

Poor 0.72% 1 1.29% 1.5 0.55% 1 

Don't know 16.55% 23 17.24% 20 12.71% 23 

Answered   139   115   181 

Skipped   0   1   0 

Total   139   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Queston 5: How would you rate the overall quality 
of fire protection services in the city?

2020 2021 2022



12 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 6: How would you rate the overall condition of city streets? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 7.25% 10 8.19% 9.5 6.08% 11 

Good 46.38% 64 56.47% 65.5 49.17% 89 

Fair 33.33% 46 25.86% 30 33.15% 60 

Poor 13.04% 18 8.62% 10 11.05% 20 

Don't know 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.55% 1 

Answered   138   115   181 

Skipped   0   1   0 

Total   138   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 6: How would you rate the overall condition of city streets?

2020 2021 2022



13 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 7: How would you rate the overall quality of snowplowing on city streets? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 27.74% 38 26.72% 31 16.57% 30 

Good 49.64% 68 57.33% 66.5 53.04% 96 

Fair 17.52% 24 10.34% 12 15.47% 28 

Poor 5.11% 7 3.88% 4.5 13.26% 24 

Don't know 0.00% 0 0.86% 1 1.66% 3 

Answered   137   115   181 

Skipped   0   1   0 

Total   137   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 7: How would you rate the overall quality
of snowplowing on city streets?

2020 2021 2022



14 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 8: How would you rate the overall condition of the municipal airport?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 5.19% 7 1.72% 2 3.31% 6 

Good 9.63% 13 7.76% 9 15.47% 28 

Fair 3.70% 5 25.00% 29 3.87% 7 

Poor 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 

Don't know 81.48% 110 64.66% 75 76.80% 139 

Answered   135   115   180 

Skipped   0   1   1 

Total   135   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 8: How would you rate the overall condition of the municipal airport?

2020 2021 2022



15 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 9: How would you rate the overall quality of city park facilities  
(parks and trails)? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 12.32% 17 14.22% 16.5 11.05% 20 

Good 60.87% 84 56.47% 65.5 55.80% 101 

Fair 13.04% 18 9.05% 10.5 14.92% 27 

Poor 0.72% 1 5.60% 6.5 4.97% 9 

Don't know 13.04% 18 13.79% 16 12.71% 23 

Answered   138   115   180 

Skipped   0   1   1 

Total   138   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 9: How would you rate the overall quality of city park facilities
(parks and trails)?

2020 2021 2022



16 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 10: How would you rate the overall condition of the Mora Aquatic Center? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 9.85% 13 10.34% 12 12.71% 23 

Good 30.30% 40 30.17% 35 40.88% 74 

Fair 4.55% 6 9.05% 10.5 12.15% 22 

Poor 0.76% 1 1.29% 1.5 1.10% 2 

Don't know 54.55% 72 49.14% 57 32.60% 59 

Answered   132   116   180 

Skipped   0   0   1 

Total   132   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 10: How would you rate the overall condition of the 
Mora Aquatic Center?

2020 2021 2022



17 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 11: How would you rate the overall condition of Oakwood Cemetery? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 14.07% 19 13.79% 16 15.47% 28 

Good 40.00% 54 44.40% 51.5 38.67% 70 

Fair 7.41% 10 5.60% 6.5 6.08% 11 

Poor 0.74% 1 1.72% 2 1.66% 3 

Don't know 37.78% 51 34.48% 40 37.02% 67 

Answered   135   116   179 

Skipped   0   0   2 

Total   135   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 11: How would you rate the overall condition of Oakwood Cemetery

2020 2021 2022



18 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 12: How would you rate the overall service and value of the  
North Country Bottleshop? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 14.81% 20 7.76% 9 17.13% 31 

Good 36.30% 49 34.91% 40.5 34.81% 63 

Fair 9.63% 13 10.78% 12.5 9.94% 18 

Poor 0.74% 1 1.72% 2 2.21% 4 

Don't know 38.52% 52 43.97% 51 34.25% 62 

Answered   135   115   178 

Skipped   0   1   3 

Total   135   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 12: How would you rate the overall service and value of the 
North Country Bottleshop?

2020 2021 2022



19 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 13: How would you rate the quality of building inspection services and  
code enforcement (zoning, nuisances, etc.) in the city?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 3.31% 4 0.86% 1 3.87% 7 

Good 28.93% 35 26.72% 31 20.99% 38 

Fair 13.22% 16 17.24% 20 19.34% 35 

Poor 5.79% 7 9.48% 11 6.08% 11 

Don't know 48.76% 59 44.83% 52 49.17% 89 

Answered   121   115   180 

Skipped   0   1   1 

Total   121   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 13: How would you rate the quality of building inspection services 
and code enforcement (zoning, nuisances, etc.) in the city?

2020 2021 2022



20 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 14: How would you rate the overall quality of services provided by the city?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 12.03% 16 12.07% 14 7.73% 14 

Good 66.17% 88 62.93% 73 56.35% 102 

Fair 15.04% 20 14.22% 16.5 20.99% 38 

Poor 0.75% 1 2.16% 2.5 3.31% 6 

Don't know 6.02% 8 8.62% 10 11.05% 20 

Answered   133   116   180 

Skipped   0   0   1 

Total   133   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 14: How would you rate the overall quality of 
services provided by the city?

2020 2021 2022



21 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 15: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of municipal 
sanitary sewer service?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 15.44% 21 14.53% 17 12.71% 23 

Good 49.26% 67 49.57% 58 44.20% 80 

Fair 13.97% 19 6.41% 7.5 9.39% 17 

Poor 1.47% 2 1.28% 1.5 1.66% 3 

Don't know 19.85% 27 28.21% 33 31.49% 57 

Answered   136   117   180 

Skipped   0   0   1 

Total   136   117   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 15: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of 
municipal sanitary sewer service

2020 2021 2022



22 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 16: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the 
municipal water service? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 17.91% 24 17.95% 21 16.02% 29 

Good 50.00% 67 54.70% 64 44.75% 81 

Fair 16.42% 22 10.26% 12 13.26% 24 

Poor 1.49% 2 0.85% 1 1.10% 2 

Don't know 14.18% 19 16.24% 19 23.76% 43 

Answered   134   117   179 

Skipped   0   0   2 

Total   134   117   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 16: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the 
municipal water service?

2020 2021 2022



23 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 17: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the  
municipal electrical service?  

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Excellent 17.91% 24 22.65% 26.5 16.02% 29 

Good 50.00% 67 61.97% 72.5 56.35% 102 

Fair 16.42% 22 5.13% 6 9.94% 18 

Poor 1.49% 2 0.00% 0 3.31% 6 

Don't know 14.18% 19 10.26% 12 11.60% 21 

Answered   134   117   176 

Skipped   0   0   5 

Total   134   117   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Excellent Good Fair Poor Don't know

Question 17: How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the 
municipal electrical service?

2020 2021 2022



24 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Question 18: Do you read the city newsletter (yes or no) and why? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Yes 89.29% 125 86.21% 100 80.11% 145 

No 6.43% 29 11.21% 13 16.02% 29 

Answered   134   113   174 

Skipped   6   3   7 

Total   140   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

     

 

 

 

 

     

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Yes No

Question 18: Do you read the city newsletter (yes or no) and why?

2020 2021 2022

“Yes” comments 

 “Yes”  (89) 

 Not always/generally/sometimes/ 

occasionally (12) 

 To stay informed/updated (36) 

 “Yes, Because I pay a fortune in taxes 

and 80% of the services suck” 

 “Yes, I enjoy reading it” 

 “Yes, I’m interested” 

 “Yes, just because” 

 “Yes, occasionally, not every edition.  

An e-letter would be better, maybe 

that's an option, but it goes to an 

incorrect email.” 

 “Yes, online only  

 “Yes, skim” 

“No” comments 

 “No” – (11) 

 Didn’t know there was one/ 

don’t receive one (14) 

 “I did when it was mailed” 

 “Don’t care – waste of my money” 

 “Not really. It is a poor print quality 

document that’s not attention getting.” 

 “No. Live out of town” 

 



25 
 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Do you use the city website (yes or no) and why? 

  
2020 

Percent 
2020 

Count 
2021 

Percent 
2021 

Count 
2022 

Percent 
2022 

Count 

Yes 23.57% 33 20.69% 24 34.81% 63 

No 70.00% 98 76.72% 89 59.12% 107 

Answered   131   113   170 

Skipped   9   3   11 

Total   140   116   181 

       
 

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

   

 

   

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Yes No

Chart Title

2020 2021 2022

“No” comments 

 “No” – (72) 

 No computer/internet/tech skills (18) 

 Didn’t know about it (4) 

 No need to (7) 

 “Don’t have the time to use” 

 “Don’t think of it” 

 “No, fb” 

 “No, haven’t’ had a reason to” 

 “No, not up to date” 

 “No -haven’t needed to for years (only 

when kids were young to swimming 

lessons)” 

 

 

“Yes” comments 

 “Yes” – (21) 

 Utility billing/to pay bills (10) 

 Swimming Lessons (5) 

 To find/look up information including 

ordinances, forms, addresses, 

minutes/agendas, events, etc. (20)  

  “Occasionally. It is difficult to navigate.” 

 “Very Seldom” 

 “Sometimes, same reason as newsletter” 

 “Yes, numerous reasons, it's a great 

resource.” 

 “Yes, job openings/happenings” 

 “Yes, sometimes” 

 “Yes, but not often” 

 

 



26 
 

 

 

City of Mora/Mora Municipal Utilities  

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Community Survey – Written Comments (grouped by main topic) 
 

Building Inspection/Code Enforcement 

 Enforcement of ordinances could be better, i.e. blight, numerous broke down cars in 

yards in town, people living in campers within city limits, snowbanks and bushes and 

shrubs creating driving hazards and blind spots, lawn mowing of unkempt yards, large 

amount of garbage, appliances, and mattresses in yards (all within city limits.) I like the 

offering of different community activities - offering the ice fishing activity to get people 

doing things on Mora Lake is a great idea!  We should be promoting that lake more, get 

people out kayaking and fishing, show it being used.   

 Need to clean up the houses that constantly have junk (cars, etc.) I have one house 

down the street that has an average of six or more junk cars, wood pallets, etc. 

(XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX) 

 There are a few city residences that are an eyesore ... Junk in the yards and 

unmaintained lawns. Why doesn't the city issue citations? 

 Women never feel 100% safe alone in the dark. Rental house on XXXXXXXXXXX leave 

garbage cans on street 365 days a year. Did not mow lawn more than 3-4 times this past 

2 summers. A mess! Large tree branches fallen due to storms not removed since mid-

summer last year. 

 

Mora Aquatic Center 

 Love the pool - wish the bathroom facilities could be updated 

 The pool is far too expensive for A LOT of families to access on a regular basis through 

the summer. Consider the taxes we spend in this area and the lakes we have, it's really a 

shame there can't be a public swim beach (Knife Lake) that people can enjoy for a much 

lower cost than the pool! 

 Wish the pool was open later in the day in summer, and sidewalks had some 

maintenance  

 Would love an adult lap swim time at the pool in the summer hard to lap swim with kids 

constantly in the only lane 

 Would the city consider having regular adult lap swim times at the pool? People could 

pay each time, or get a punch card for admission. 

 

Community Development 

 How did a vape shop end up in downtown Mora? What’s up with the empty Tobacco 

Shop on 65? Mora needs an edible CBD ordinance and needs to prohibit sales until one 

passes.  



27 
 

 Internet service outside of Mora is my biggest concern. Would also love other 

businesses besides dollar stores and banks.  

 There is an issue with small city development and loan to residents with 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX and remodel. Their work is not the best.  

 Putting in a tobacco shop on main street is/was a huge mistake. New bridge walkway 

dumps people using it in the right turn lane that leads to the frontage road?! How is this 

safe? We didn't need another General Dollar store!  

 We could sure use some good quality retail stores - like clothing, etc. I miss my former 

Walmart in Pine City.  

 We like Mora.  We only wish the area had more places to work as we have to commute 

toward the metro for our jobs.  More retail shopping stores like other neighboring 

towns have for their communities. At least a clothing store.    

 We need less dollar stores and more businesses of substance.  

 No competitive businesses to keep People in Mora.  Taxing us out, yet we have to go out 

of town to shop.   I know this is more than the city streets. Need a survey for overall 

Mora needs. 

 

Streets 

 With the increased number of kids/adults walking the shoulder of Wood Street, traffic 

needs to slow down. 

 After any parade or other activities downtown, Union Street is always cleaned up by the 

next morning. Thank you. An issue which concerns me is the lack of another grocery 

store or Wal-Mart-type to be able to have more items to purchase rather than to have 

to drive and spend my money elsewhere. Thank you.  

 Edgewood Park needs streets redone. Need stop light by Kwik Trip.  

 Hats off to Mora street dept. for the great snow removal 

 I feel the quality of the snow removal has really gotten worse. It isn’t as good/quick as it 

use to be. I have noticed weeds in the sidewalk cracks on Forest Ave downtown….. 

enforcement on sidewalk snow removal needs to be stepped up  

 I know there are many streets to plow after a snow, but it is very upsetting to have 

sidewalk/driveway shoveled and much later the snowplow comes by and plugs up the 

sidewalk/driveway. Then have to pay more to have someone shovel this mess.  

 I wish they would plow closer to the curb, I wish they wouldn't plow so much more 

snow on my side of the street than the other side, I wish they would clean up the 

cemetery (newer graves have no grass on them, just dirt and weeds growing, ruts from 

driving that aren't repaired). 

 I’ve been very disappointed in how the streets are plowed. Not only are most of the side 

streets so sloppy my little car can barely find traction, but because the plows always use 

the same route my side of the street has snow piled up to my knees after the plows go 

by while the other side of the street will have ankle deep piles. It’s a huge disservice to 

leave half the city with infinitely more snow to remove than the other, all just because 

we were unlucky in which side of the street we happened to buy a house.  

 Plow the streets curb to curb.  Put the wing down please!  



28 
 

 Sidewalk repairs beyond Main Street would improve our city appearance. 

 Street crack seal very bad. Street repair very bad. Pothole repair very bad job. Ask me I'll 

show you how to patch potholes. Oh, and I have more. High pay, poor work (we pay).  

 Streets are plowed too far away from the curb, making the streets narrow and 

dangerous.  Saw the streets cleaned only once this summer.  Heard a new street cleaner 

was purchased??? We’ve been hit with higher sewer, water and electric plus a big rise in 

taxes in town.  Liquor store prices are high.   

 Thanks for repairing North Grove Street - it's such an improvement. Can you get the 

boarded up house by the Library Park Area destroyed? Horrible.  

 The city does a great job of snowplowing, but I wish they could try to avoid putting piles 

of snow at the end of the driveway after the driveway is cleared.  

 The street lights on 7th Street (at least 1-2 of them) have been burnt out since June 23, 

2022. I think if they are back ordered then get another company to order from. Please 

get your act together and get them working. Thank you.  

 Why should they be an ordinance on parking on the street during the winter when they 

don’t plow until 8am-10am in the morning. Also could they possibly even try and get 

close to the curb they are like 3ft from the curb. The snow plowing and removal is 

horrible. 

 With the increased number of kids/adults walking the shoulder of Wood Street, traffic 

needs to slow down. 

 

Parks & Trails 

 Better maintenance and updates needed at city parks.  

 Bike/walking trails need to be repaired. City should consider expanding the walking trail 

to include along the river - it appears to have been a trail in the past.  

 Enjoy Music in the Park and would appreciate receiving survey, but they are mostly 

handed out to people that sit up front, when they do come to us, we get passed by.  

 I wish the park had better maintenance near the pool. Some of the swings looked a bit 

dangerous.  I wish the pool allowed families to bring in at least beverages. It would help 

everyone save some money.  An inclusive handicap accessible playground would be 

amazing. I love the walking track at Welia health center.  

 Library Park could use an additional trash can and would encourage volunteer clean up 

events by local clubs.  

 Please repair and maintain with pride our town's monuments and parks.  

 Some benches around town 

 The basketball court on the north side of Library Park is a nuisance for nearby residential 

neighbors. Please enforce hours, noise ordinances and parking violations. The extended 

fences protect pickle ball courts, but no such fencing protects property owners on the 

north side.  

 The latest city newsletter was very detailed and informative - new format? Please 

continue to maintain the walking/bike path along 9th St. and 7th St. during the winter. 

Many walk these paths. Stopped at the port-a-potty at the Library Park this summer - 

couldn't use; it was disgustingly filthy.  



29 
 

 We use a septic system and well for water that is why I selected don't know for those 

answers. We have also not been to the airport yet.  I would love to see a wheelchair 

accessible playground built in town. The park by the waterpark was in dire need of 

maintenance when we visited, we did report it.  I love the many activities offered for 

families at the library.  As a newer resident it would be great to have a welcome packet 

sent out explaining town offerings. I love that the Facebook page is being utilized to 

notify of events.    

 Would like to see some music/speakers along main street. Music in the Park is great! 

 

City Services 

 City bill has franchise fees? Why? All the extra charges on the monthly bill are getting 

ridiculous! 

 Don't know enough about the services - trust those in charge to handle things.  

 I actually live out of town - about 3 1/2 miles - so I am not familiar with the "in-town" 

facilities.  

 Not a fan of the high electrical rates 

 Our city water and wastewater are way too expensive. I've said this since the 

wastewater treatment plant was put in. Nothing seems to change. Bottleshop was not 

needed - too much $. Building inspection is inconsistent. Airport not needed - waste of 

$.  

 We love living in the city of Mora. However, the water is not the greatest quality, gives 

us tummy aches and we have had to install filters in everything including shower head. 

We also would love to see more sidewalks for safe walking around the city. Finally we'd 

love to see a safe way to cross 65 to walk and get groceries. Traffic is always speeding 

40+mph and when we cross it feels like cars speed up to intimidate pedestrians, even 

when using the crosswalk. The frontage road by Coborn’s has no safe walkways for 

pedestrians either. Adding a safer crosswalk or pedestrian overpass and sidewalks near 

the grocery store would greatly improve our perception of the city.  

 Why do you not send a return envelope with the bill? 

 

Taxes 

 Bring some businesses into this town to raise tax revenue and take some of the burden 

off of the residents.  

 I don’t understand why the value of my home goes up every year - by a lot - and no 

improvements have been made - and I feel like it's just so you can raise taxes on my 

property which I think is pretty awful. We are being taxed right out of our home!  

 I moved here and taxes almost doubled for the school, now they are doubling again. I 

pay $6,000 F***ing grand a year and every other day someone is trespassing or casing 

my house. The police force shows up about me throwing 4 boxes in a public dumpster 

but can't keep my family safe?! Why the hell should I pay $6,000 a year to help the 

county out of debt? Did I cause this debt? Get your F***ing heads out of your A**es! 

What a F***ing joke.  



30 
 

 Property taxes are getting absolutely out of hand. Something must be done to change it. 

Why did the city budget "Misc." line go up by almost a million dollars? I tried to go 

through the process on the property tax statement to decrease the value my house is 

listed at, because it's nowhere near that value, and I was treated terribly by the woman I 

was dealing with. I bought my house at an affordable price, around $65,000, so I wasn't 

living beyond my means, and my house value has increased over 300% to over $200,000 

(over $100,000 in just the last 5 years), which has pushed my property taxes close to 

$4000. I am the sole provider of my family of four. A working mother shouldn't have to 

worry whether she can afford to stay in a house that used to be within her means. I 

have to put $75 away every week just to pay my property taxes. If anyone asks me, I will 

not recommend that anyone move to Mora. I used to love it here, now I'm just stuck. 

 Property taxes too high. How about a self-addressed, self-stamped envelope next time? 

 Regarding 2023 City Budget: How do you justify a >50% budget increase without any 

explanation to residents? What is extra $ being used for - in the three years we have 

lived here, our property taxes increase 40% - I soon will have to move away from Mora - 

too expensive! 

 We are retired and live on a fixed income. Since we bought our home in June 2018, our 

taxes have gone up $1,000. This is unsustainable! What is your plan to remedy this? 

 

Other 

 The services (plowing, mowing fuel pump) are excellent, but, the runway and taxiways 

and ramp are of very poor quality (cracks, breaking up leaving stones do damage very 

expensive propellers.  

 Been in contact for two years to have something fixed city related and told it wasn't a 

priority  

 I like the newer, lightweight city newsletter 

 I thought this survey was going to include questions such as: What are we doing right? 

What could we do better? What are priorities you have with regard to a city of our size? 

 I would like to commend the first responders of Mora- I work at a place in town where 

they are often called, and have always been very efficient and resourceful. EMT’s are 

quick to respond, and officers take every bit of information seriously while treating the 

complainant with 100% respect and dignity. I have lived here 2 years and worked here 

under 1 year, and I have nothing but great things to say about our city. Best place I’ve 

ever lived. Thank you to all first responders keeping the city safe! 

 Is the city still pursing state funding for a Mora Lake overflow system upgrade? It's been 

4 years in process. What's the delay when the state has a surplus budget? 

 Overall I feel the city is doing a good job but I am very surprised of the number of people 

in the office and seem to not have enough to do.  Pool & Parks was one person part 

time and now is full-time with no improvements. Same in accounting too many people 

to handle simple accounts and simple accounting principles. Too many workers with not 

enough work. City should streamline the office staff and get rid at least a third of the 

staff. 



31 
 

  



32 
 

 

 
 
 

Appendix B 
Survey Instrument 

  



33 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

 

  



34 
 

CITY OF MORA/MORA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 

2022 Performance Measurement Program 

Community Survey 

 

 
This is a short community survey asking you how you feel about various services provided by the City 

of Mora and Mora Municipal Utilities.  

Please take the time to complete this short survey and return it to city hall no later than Friday, 

January 27, 2023. You can include the survey with your utility bill payment, mail it, or drop it off at 

city hall. The survey is completely anonymous. If you have a question or comment to which you would 

like a response, please write your name and contact information on the survey or send your question 

or comment to the city. 

The survey results will be presented at a future city council meeting and will then be posted on the 

city’s website and published in the newsletter. This survey will also be given in coming years so we 

can measure our performance over time. 

Thank you very much for taking the time and showing an interest in your community. If you have any 

questions, please contact city hall at 320-679-1511. 

 

1. Are you a   Mora Resident  Mora Business owner 

 Resident or Business Owner in _______________ Township 

 

2.  Indicate the number of years you have lived in the city/township: ______years. 

 

3.  How would you rate the overall appearance of the city?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

4. How would you describe your overall feeling of safety in the city?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

5. How would you rate the overall quality of fire protection services in the city?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

6. How would you rate the overall condition of city streets?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

7. How would you rate the overall quality of snowplowing on city streets?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

8. How would you rate the overall condition of the municipal airport?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

9. How would you rate the overall quality of city park facilities (parks and trails)?  



35 
 

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

10. How would you rate the overall condition of the Mora Aquatic Center? 

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

11. How would you rate the overall condition of Oakwood Cemetery? 

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

12. How would you rate the overall service and value of the North Country Bottleshop? 

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

13. How would you rate the quality of building inspection services and code enforcement (zoning, 

nuisances, etc.) in the city?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

14. How would you rate the overall quality of services provided by the city?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

15.  How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of municipal sanitary sewer service?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

16.  How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the municipal water service?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

17.  How would you rate the dependability and overall quality of the municipal electrical service?  

 

Excellent Good  Fair   Poor   Don’t know  

 

18. Do you read the city newsletter?  Yes No Why_____________________________ 

 

19. Do you use the city website?  Yes No Why_____________________________ 

 

Questions or comments________________________________________________________________  

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 



36 
 

Please complete and return this survey to city hall no later than  

Friday, January 27, 2023.       

Thank you! 

 

Mailing Address: City of Mora / Mora Municipal Utilities, 101 Lake Street S., Mora, MN 55051 



Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: May 16, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Solar Energy System – 200  9th St 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider granting a conditional use permit to allow a Solar Energy System in the R-1 Single 
Family Residential District at 118 9th Street – the Mora High School. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Green2 Electric, applicant, and Mora Independent School District No. 332, property owner, have applied 
for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family 
Residential District.  

The subject site is located at 200 9th St. N (Mora Elementary School). The proposed includes the 
installation of a 39.9 kw solar array mounted on the roof of the school. 

The Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy systems, including solar energy systems, which 
have a positive impact on energy conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. The Zoning 
Code provides general standards for Solar Energy Systems and the proposed system was reviewed by city and 
utility staff as well as the city’s electrical engineer to determine compliance with these standards. Staff finds 
that the proposed system complies with the general standards and no concerns have been identified.  

The property owner is required by the Zoning Code and the state to enter into an interconnection agreement 
with the local electric utility company (MMU) and obtain a building permit prior to installation. The applicant 
submitted an interconnection application and the city’s electrical engineer has approved the application with 
conditions.  

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing for this request at May 8, 2023 meeting. No members of 
the public expressed opposition to the proposed CUP. The commission recommended approval. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Approve the CUP with conditions as presented or amended.

2. Deny the CUP, providing specific reasons for denial for the written record.

3. Table the request for further consideration. The 60-day review period for this request expires on July 5,
2023; if the Council tables the request, staff will automatically exercise the city’s statutory right to extend
the review period by an additional 60 days.



Memorandum 

5/12/2023  2 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Motion to approve as presented or amended. 
 
 
Attachments 
Site plan showing placement of proposed Solar Energy System 
Proposed Resolution No. 2023-523 

 
 



Project Name 
ISD 332 - Mora Elementary
School

Utility Customer of Record
Trailview School

Installation Address  
200 9th St. N.,
Mora, MN 55051

Proposed System
Application # TBD
Meter # 328559635
Total AC Size - 39.9kW
Total DC Size - 59.2kW
VAC/PH - 480/277; 3PH

Building Svc. Voltage
480/277,  3PH / 4W
Secondary Interconnection
Utility XFMR Max AIC = 33,400

DESCRIPTION

Installer 
iDEAL Energies/
Green  Electric, LLC.2

# Date Description

1 05/20/2022 Application

2 08/16/2022 Utility Application

3

ISSUE

DRAWN BY
AW | SR

CHECK BY
BB | AW

8318 Pillsbury Ave S
Bloomington, MN 55420
612-928-5008

Electrical Contractor 
License #EA791017

C.100

Site Plan

General Notes
1.All equipment is placed on one line diagram and installed per NEC requirements

2. PV Production Meter & Utility AC Disconnect are located together in a readily accessible location

3. 24/7 unescorted, keyless access shall be provided for all Utility equipment. 

4. All serviceable equipment shall be installed more than 10 feet from a roof edge or similar fall risk.

5. All testing shall be performed by qualified personnel, with proper personal protection equipment.

6. No overhead clearance issues.

1
Overall Site Plan

SCALE: 1’ = 200’
2

Enlarged Plan - PV Equipment

SCALE: 1” = 20’

EXISTING EQUIPMENT 

AA Existing Main Service Meter (Utility-owned, 
bi-directional) 

BB Existing Switchgear Main Service 
Disconnect

Utility Transformer

PROJECT SPECIFIC EQUIPMENT

B PV System Main Disconnect (Fused bucket)

J PV Production Meter (utility-owned)

K Utility AC Disconnect

Q Inverter

R Optimizers

S Modules

EQUIPMENT KEY
SYSTEM COLOR CODE

Existing Electrical Equipment

Proposed System

H
w

y 65
1800 ft. east of building

9th St N
230 ft. south of building

B

BB

C.100 
2

AA

Q J K

8'

1' 1'
8'

5'

1'

Main Service Entrance

N

meter on site:328559635

SR
Proposed Array Location

PROPOSED SYSTEM SUMMARY

Solar Size (AC) 39.9kW

Solar Size (DC) 59.2kW

DC/AC Ratio 1.48

Set Inverter Power Factor 0.98 leading

 Set Inverter Active Power  (1) 39.9kW

Roof Slope 0

Azimuth 180



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-523 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA, RECOMMENDING 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING A 

SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM TO BE LOCATED IN THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT  
AS REQUESTED BY GREEN2 ELECTRIC 

  
WHEREAS, Green2 Electric, applicant, and Mora Independent School District No. 332, property owner, 
submitted an application dated received April 6, 2023 and considered complete on April 6, 2023 for a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District; and 
  
WHEREAS, the subject property is located at 200 9th St. N., and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property is legally described as:  
 

PID 22.00290.50 
E ½ of NE ¼ of NW ¼ and NW ¼ of NE ¼, Ex S 80’ of N 503’ of E 12’ thereof 

Kanabec County, Minnesota 
Section 11 Township 039 Range 024 

 
WHEREAS, notice was provided and on April 14, 2023, the Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing regarding this application, at which it heard from the Community Development Director and 
invited members of the public to comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the request and the Planning Commission’s recommendation at 
its May 16, 2023 meeting and made the following finding as required by Zoning Code §150.036 
Conditional Uses, Subd. E Standards: 
 
Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 

and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed use of Solar Energy System as a Conditional Use 
within the R-1 Single Family Residential District and the proposed use complies with all 
district regulations. The Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy systems, 
including solar energy systems, which have a positive impact on energy conservation 
with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. Therefore, the proposed use is 
consistent with the intent of the Zoning Code and R-1 Single Family Residential District.  

 
Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The city’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2021, does not address the use of 

Solar Energy Systems. However, the proposed use aligns with the Comprehensive Plan 
goals to: improve and protect the physical environment of the community as a setting 
for human activities, making it more attractive, healthful and efficient; and maintain a 
high level of public services in an efficient manner that minimizes the tax burden on 
Mora’s residents, businesses and industries.  



 
Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 Given that the proposed Solar Energy System is located on a structure roof more than 

500 feet from a roadway, the proposed use will have no impact on traffic and will not 
cause undue traffic congestion in the general area.  

 
Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 

facilities and services. 
Finding #4 The property is currently served by municipal water, sewer, and electric service; and, the 

property is adequately served by all other public services, including public streets and 
emergency services. 

 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 The proposed Solar Energy System is located on a structure roof with little to no visibility 

from adjacent properties. There is no evidence to suggest that the appearance will have 
an adverse effect upon adjacent properties. 

 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 The proposed use will have little to no visibility from adjacent residential properties. The 
city believes that the proposed use is compatible by virtue of its roof-top location. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mora, MN hereby approves the 
Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Solar Energy System shall be installed in conformance with the plans and specifications dated 

received April 6, 2023. Any major deviation, as determined by city staff, shall require further review 
and approval by the City Council. 

2. The property owner is required to enter into an interconnection agreement with Mora Municipal 
Utilities. 

3. A service / meter upgrade may be necessary. The expense of equipment and labor shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

4. The Solar Energy System shall be installed in a manner that does not create glare for neighboring 
dwellings or traffic.  

5. The applicant and/or property owner shall coordinate with Mora Municipal Utilities electric utility 
staff regarding: 

a. Installation and location of required visible, lockable disconnect and metering equipment 
and associated labeling. 

b. Verification of inverter equipment and related protection per submittal. 
c. Acceptance testing of the installation prior to commercial operation. 
d. Involvement of electric utility staff during power switchover. 



6. The Solar Energy System shall be certified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. and comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Codes and Minnesota State Building Codes. 

7. Issuance of a building permit is required prior to installation. The manufacturer’s specifications must 
be submitted with the building permit application. 

8. The manufacturer’s specifications must be on-site and available to city and utility staff at all times 
during installation and inspections. 

9. This Conditional Use Permit shall be utilized and all conditions shall be met within one year of 
recording or the Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void. 

10. If the Solar Energy System becomes inoperable for 12 successive months, the system shall be 
deemed abandoned and a public nuisance. The property owner shall remove the abandoned system 
and all associated equipment at their expense after obtaining a demolition permit. Removal must be 
completed within 90 days following the 12 month period. 

 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for approval by Council Member ___________ and 
seconded by Council Member ____________. 
 

Voting for the resolution: .......................  
Voting against the resolution:.................  
Abstained from voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  
 

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ATTEST: _____________________________ 
Jake Mathison, Mayor       Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

 
 
 



Item No. 8c
 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: May 16, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Solar Energy System – 118  9th St 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider granting a conditional use permit to allow a Solar Energy System in the R-1 Single 
Family Residential District at 118 9th Street – the Mora High School. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Green2 Electric, applicant, and Mora Independent School District No. 332, property owner, have applied 
for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family 
Residential District.  

The subject site is located at 118 9th St. N (Mora High School). The proposed includes the installation of 
a 39.9 kw solar array mounted on the roof of the school. 

The Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy systems, including solar energy systems, which 
have a positive impact on energy conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. The Zoning 
Code provides general standards for Solar Energy Systems and the proposed system was reviewed by city and 
utility staff as well as the city’s electrical engineer to determine compliance with these standards. Staff finds 
that the proposed system complies with the general standards and no concerns have been identified.  

The property owner is required by the Zoning Code and the state to enter into an interconnection agreement 
with the local electric utility company (MMU) and obtain a building permit prior to installation. The applicant 
submitted an interconnection application and the city’s electrical engineer has approved the application with 
conditions.  

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing for this request at May 8, 2023 meeting. No members of 
the public expressed opposition to the proposed CUP. The commission recommended approval. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Approve the CUP with conditions as presented or amended.

2. Deny the CUP, providing specific reasons for denial for the written record.

3. Table the request for further consideration. The 60-day review period for this request expires on July 5,
2023; if the Council tables the request, staff will automatically exercise the city’s statutory right to extend
the review period by an additional 60 days.



Memorandum 

5/12/2023  2 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Motion to approve as presented or amended. 
 
 
Attachments 
Site plan showing placement of proposed Solar Energy System 
Proposed Resolution No. 2023-524 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-524 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA, RECOMMENDING 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING A 

SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM TO BE LOCATED IN THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT  
AS REQUESTED BY GREEN2 ELECTRIC 

  
WHEREAS, Green2 Electric, applicant, and Mora Independent School District No. 332, property owner, 
submitted an application dated received April 6, 2023 and considered complete on April 6, 2023 for a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing a Solar Energy System to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential 
District; and 
  
WHEREAS, the subject property is located at 118 9th St. N., and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property is legally described as:  
 

PID 22.00290.50 
E ½ of NE ¼ of NW ¼ and NW ¼ of NE ¼, Ex S 80’ of N 503’ of E 12’ thereof 

Kanabec County, Minnesota 
Section 11 Township 039 Range 024 

 
WHEREAS, notice was provided and on April 14, 2023, the Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing regarding this application, at which it heard from the Community Development Director and 
invited members of the public to comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the request and the Planning Commission’s recommendation at 
its May 16, 2023 meeting and made the following finding as required by Zoning Code §150.036 
Conditional Uses, Subd. E Standards: 
 
Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 

and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed use of Solar Energy System as a Conditional Use 
within the R-1 Single Family Residential District and the proposed use complies with all 
district regulations. The Zoning Code encourages the use of renewable energy systems, 
including solar energy systems, which have a positive impact on energy conservation 
with limited adverse impact on nearby properties. Therefore, the proposed use is 
consistent with the intent of the Zoning Code and R-1 Single Family Residential District.  

 
Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The city’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2021, does not address the use of 

Solar Energy Systems. However, the proposed use aligns with the Comprehensive Plan 
goals to: improve and protect the physical environment of the community as a setting 
for human activities, making it more attractive, healthful and efficient; and maintain a 
high level of public services in an efficient manner that minimizes the tax burden on 
Mora’s residents, businesses and industries.  



 
Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 Given that the proposed Solar Energy System is located on a structure roof more than 

500 feet from a roadway, the proposed use will have no impact on traffic and will not 
cause undue traffic congestion in the general area.  

 
Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 

facilities and services. 
Finding #4 The property is currently served by municipal water, sewer, and electric service; and, the 

property is adequately served by all other public services, including public streets and 
emergency services. 

 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 The proposed Solar Energy System is located on a structure roof with little to no visibility 

from adjacent properties. There is no evidence to suggest that the appearance will have 
an adverse effect upon adjacent properties. 

 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 The proposed use will have little to no visibility from adjacent residential properties. The 
city believes that the proposed use is compatible by virtue of its roof-top location. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mora, MN hereby approves the 
Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Solar Energy System shall be installed in conformance with the plans and specifications dated 

received April 6, 2023. Any major deviation, as determined by city staff, shall require further review 
and approval by the City Council. 

2. The property owner is required to enter into an interconnection agreement with Mora Municipal 
Utilities. 

3. A service / meter upgrade may be necessary. The expense of equipment and labor shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

4. The Solar Energy System shall be installed in a manner that does not create glare for neighboring 
dwellings or traffic.  

5. The applicant and/or property owner shall coordinate with Mora Municipal Utilities electric utility 
staff regarding: 

a. Installation and location of required visible, lockable disconnect and metering equipment 
and associated labeling. 

b. Verification of inverter equipment and related protection per submittal. 
c. Acceptance testing of the installation prior to commercial operation. 
d. Involvement of electric utility staff during power switchover. 



6. The Solar Energy System shall be certified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. and comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Codes and Minnesota State Building Codes. 

7. Issuance of a building permit is required prior to installation. The manufacturer’s specifications must 
be submitted with the building permit application. 

8. The manufacturer’s specifications must be on-site and available to city and utility staff at all times 
during installation and inspections. 

9. This Conditional Use Permit shall be utilized and all conditions shall be met within one year of 
recording or the Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void. 

10. If the Solar Energy System becomes inoperable for 12 successive months, the system shall be 
deemed abandoned and a public nuisance. The property owner shall remove the abandoned system 
and all associated equipment at their expense after obtaining a demolition permit. Removal must be 
completed within 90 days following the 12 month period. 

 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for approval by Council Member ___________ and 
seconded by Council Member ____________. 
 

Voting for the resolution: .......................  
Voting against the resolution:.................  
Abstained from voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  
 

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 16th day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 
_______________________________   ATTEST: _____________________________ 
Jake Mathison, Mayor       Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

 
 
 



Project Name 
ISD 332 - Mora High School

Utility Customer of Record
ISD 332 - Mora Public School 
District  

Installation Address  
118 9th St. North
Mora, MN 55051

Proposed System 
Application # 
Meter # 82852680
Total AC Size - 39.9kW
Total DC Size - 59.2kW
VAC/PHASE - 480/277, 3PH

Building Svc. Voltage
480/1277  3PH / 4W
Secondary Interconnection
Utility XFMR Max AIC = 33,900A
Mora Municipal Utilities

DESCRIPTION

Installer 
iDEAL Energies/
Green  Electric, LLC.2

# Date Description

1 05/20/2022 Application

2 02/01/2023 Utility Application

3

ISSUE

DRAWN BY
AW | DN

CHECK BY
BB | AW

8318 Pillsbury Ave S
Bloomington, MN 55420
612-928-5008

Electrical Contractor 
License #EA791017

C.100

Site Plan

General Notes
1.All equipment is placed on one line diagram and installed per NEC requirements

2. PV Production Meter & Utility AC Disconnect are located together in a readily accessible within 10’ of the Main 
Service Meter. 

3. 24/7 keyless access shall be provided for all Utility equipment. 

4. All serviceable equipment shall be installed more than 10 feet from a roof edge or similar fall risk.

5. All testing shall be performed by qualified personnel, with proper personal protection equipment.

6. No overhead clearance issues.

1
Overall Site Plan

SCALE: 1’ = 200’

2
Enlarged Plan - PV Equipment

SCALE: 1” = 30’

EXISTING EQUIPMENT 

AA Existing Main Service Meter (Utility-owned, 
bi-directional) 

BB Existing Switchgear Main Service 
Disconnect

Utility Transformer

HH Automatic Transfer Switch

GG Generator

PROJECT SPECIFIC EQUIPMENT

B Main PV Disconnect (breaker)

J PV Production Meter (utility-owned)

K Utility AC Disconnect

Q Inverter

R Optimizers

S Modules

EQUIPMENT KEY
SYSTEM COLOR CODE

Existing Electrical Equipment

Proposed System 

PROPOSED SYSTEM SUMMARY

Solar Size (AC) 39.9kW

Solar Size (DC) 59.2kW

DC/AC Ratio 1.48

Set Inverter Power Factor 0.98 leading

 Set Inverter Active Power  (1) 39.9kW

Roof Slope 0

Azimuth 140

H
W

Y 65
1,025 ft. due w

est of building

E Maple Ave.
50 ft. South of building

AA

B

BB

SR

HH-1
HH-2

GG

J KQ

1'1'

5'

1'

10'

1'
1'

25'

15'

Main Service Entrance

New construction to be completed 2023

Proposed Array Location

C.100 
2



Item No. 8d 

1 

M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: 5/12/2023 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Caleb Christenson, Building Official and Kelly Christianson, Accountant 

RE: Consider Approval of Forfeiture of Landscaping and Driveway Deposit Fees and Intra-fund 
Transfer in the amount of $12,700.00 

ITEM SUMMARY 

Consider the approval of forfeiture of landscaping and driveway deposit fees. Fees will be transferred 
from Landscape Deposits (101-22025) and Deposits (101-22201) to Miscellaneous Revenues (101-
41910-37150) in the planning and zoning department, all within the General fund. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The City of Mora’s Planning and Zoning department collects various deposit fees as outlined in the City 
Council approved City of Mora, MN Code of Ordinances and recorded on the annually approved fee 
schedule.  

The following landscaping and driveway deposit fees were collected at the time of permit applications: 

Landscaping Deposit Fees: 

Vendor Property Description Tran Date Receipt #  Total Held 

PaxMar Lending 412 Bluebird St 07/17/18 19741   (1,200.00) 

R HOME 400 Bluebird St 11/20/20 44232   (1,500.00) 

R HOME 402 Bluebird St 11/20/20 44232   (1,500.00) 

R HOME 405 Cardinal St 11/20/20 44232   (1,500.00) 

LAKELAND INVESTORS, INC.    340 Walnut St S 04/12/21 48102   (1,500.00) 



5/12/2023  2 

 

Driveway Deposit Fees: 

Vendor Property Description Tran Date Receipt #  Total Held  

R HOME                        400 Bluebird St 11/18/20 44232        1,000.00  

R HOME                        402 Bluebird St 11/18/20 44232        1,000.00  

R HOME                        405 Cardinal St 11/18/20 44232        1,000.00  

SOUSSI, HAYTHEM               2133 220th Ave 03/09/21 47205        2,500.00  

 

The applicants did not meet the requirements set forth in ordinance, and therefore the deposit fees 
are eligible for forfeiture.  Approval of the forfeiture of deposit fees and transfer is needed before the 
accounting entry can be posted. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Approve the forfeiture of the above referenced landscaping and driveway deposit fees and intra-
fund transfer of forfeited deposit fees in the amount of $12,700.00. 

2. Deny the forfeiture of funds and transfer of deposit fees. The monies will remain an 
outstanding liability against the general fund. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Approve the forfeiture of landscaping deposit and driveway deposit fees and transfer of funds. 

 

 
 
 
Attachments:  
Mora, MN Code of Ordinances § 150.501 DESIGN AND MAINTENANCE OF OFF-STREET PARKING AREA. 
Mora, MN Code of Ordinances § 150.066 LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS. 



§ 150.066 LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS.

   (A)   All exposed ground areas on a lot or parcel surrounding a principal or accessory structure that are not devoted to
drives, sidewalks, patios or parking lots shall have a minimum of four (4) inches of topsoil and be covered with sod, seed or
other landscaping materials as approved by the city.

   (B)   Non-residential uses are subject to the same requirements and may be subject to additional landscaping as
determined by the Planning Commission and City Council.

   (C)   All required landscaping shall be replaced by the property owner if vegetation dies or is otherwise removed.
Landscaping may be located within a utility or drainage easement, but the owner of the property shall be responsible for any
cost associated with removing and replacing said landscaping if work within the easement requires removal of the
landscaping.

   (D)   Existing vegetation, which are of acceptable species, size and location and are of good quality, may be used to fulfill
landscaping requirements.

   (E)   A landscape deposit, as established by resolution of the City Council, will be collected at the time of building permit
application. The deposit shall be in the form of cash, letter of credit, or other means as approved by the city. Said deposit will
be released when all required landscaping is installed. Landscaping must be completed within one (1) year of building
permit issuance or the deposit will be forfeited.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010) Penalty, see § 150.999

number
Highlight



§ 150.501 DESIGN AND MAINTENANCE OF OFF-STREET PARKING AREA.

   (A)   Access. Parking areas shall be designed so as to provide adequate means of access to a public alley or street. Such
driveway access shall not exceed twenty-four (24) feet in width for residential districts and for other districts shall be allowed
pursuant to site plan approval by the city. Properties within residential districts shall be limited to two (2) accesses and a
minimum of six (6) feet is required between accesses. Accesses shall be located so as to cause the least interference with
traffic movement and shall be no closer than two (2) feet from side lot lines, except for those properties with an approved
zero (0) foot lot line.

   (B)   Size of parking spaces. Each parking space shall be not less than nine (9) feet wide and nineteen (19) feet in length
exclusive of an adequately designed system of access drives.

   (C)   Drive aisles. Drive aisles shall be no less than twenty six (26) feet in width.

   (D)   Fractional spaces. When the determining of the number of off-street parking spaces results in a fraction, each
fraction of one-half (1/2) or more shall constitute another space.

   (E)   Signs. No signs shall be located in any parking area except as necessary for orderly operation of traffic movement.

   (F)   Surfacing. All new parking areas and driveways shall be hard surfaced in order to control dust and drainage.
Allowable surfacing materials include bituminous, concrete, or other materials as approved by the Public Works Director.
Parking areas designed for fewer than three (3) vehicles shall be exempt from the hard surfacing requirement; however, all
parking areas and driveways shall be hard surfaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet as measured from the nearest edge of the
public roadway. If the public roadway is not hard surfaced, the driveway need not be hard surfaced until such time that the
property owner is given notice to do so by the city. Notice will be given by the city within thirty (30) days of the public
roadway being hard surfaced. The notice shall specify a required completion date which shall not be less than three (3)
months nor more than one (1) year from the date of the notice. At any time that a property owner installs a new garage,
adds on to an existing garage or replaces a garage, the hard surfacing requirement shall be enforced. Plans for surfacing
and drainage are subject to city review and approval. A surfacing deposit, in an amount set forth by the City Council from
time to time, shall be paid to the city at the time of building permit issuance for any property owner developing a vacant
property, installing a new garage, adding on to an existing garage or replacing an old garage. The payment shall be made in
the form of cash, letter of credit, or other means as approved by the city. Upon completion of the hard surfacing, the deposit
shall be refunded. Surfacing shall be completed within one (1) year of building permit issuance or the deposit shall be
forfeited.

   (G)   Lighting. Any lighting used to illuminate an off-street parking area shall be so designed and arranged as to reflect the
light away from adjacent property.

   (H)   Curbing and landscaping. All open off-street parking areas designed to have head-in parking along the property line
shall provide a bumper curb not less than three (3) feet from the side property line or guard of normal bumper height not
less than one (1) foot from the side property line. When said area is for six (6) spaces or more, a curb or fence not over six
(6) feet in height shall be erected along the front yard set back line with grass or planting occupying the space between the
sidewalk and curb or fence.

   (I)   Fence required. When a required off-street parking area for six (6) or more vehicles is located adjacent to an R district
a fence of adequate design, not over six (6) feet in height nor less than three and one-half (3-1/2) feet in height, shall be
erected along the R district property line. Landscaping techniques approved by the city may be used to accomplish a buffer
in lieu of fencing between the parking lot and the R district.

   (J)   Maintenance of off-street parking space. It shall be the joint responsibility of the operator and owner of the principal
use, uses or building to maintain, in a neat and adequate manner, the parking area, access ways, landscaping and required
fences.

   (K)   R districts. Required off-street parking spaces/areas in the R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4 districts shall be on the same lot as
the principal building.

   (L)   Commercial vehicle parking. Off-street parking facilities accessory to residential use shall be utilized solely for the
parking of passenger automobiles or one (1) truck not to exceed one and one-half (1-1/2) ton capacity for each dwelling unit.
Under no circumstance shall required parking facilities accessory to residential structures be used for the storage of
commercial vehicles or for the parking of automobiles belonging to the employees, owners, tenants or customers of
business or manufacturing establishments.

   (M)   Prohibited use of parking area. Required off-street parking space in any district shall not be utilized for open storage
of goods or for the storage of recreational vehicles and campers and vehicles which are inoperable or for sale or rent.

   (N)   Recreational vehicle parking. Off street parking facilities utilized for recreational vehicles, including but not limited to
RVs, campers and boats, shall have an improved, durable surface.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010) Penalty, see § 150.999

number
Highlight







Engineers  |  Architects  |  Planners  |  Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, MN 55110-3507 
651.490.2000  |  800.325.2055  |  888.908.8166 fax  |  sehinc.com 

SEH is 100% employee-owned  |  Affirmative Action–Equal Opportunity Employer 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Greg Anderson, PE (Lic. MN) 
 
DATE: May 12, 2023 
 
RE: TH 65 Left Turn Lane at 9th Street Project  
 SEH No. MORA0 169235  14.00 
 
 
We have been working with MnDOT on the final design for the left turn lane.  MnDOT has requested the 
left turn lane be longer than their standard left turn lane due to the bus traffic that will be using the turn 
lane.  This increased length of the turn lane has increased the overall footprint of the project.  Originally 
the project was planned to only impact TH 65 from Industrial Road, up through the 9th Street intersection.  
With the increased turn lane length, the project footprint now extends several hundred feet south of 
Industrial Road. 
 
Extending the project footprint south of Industrial Road also impacts the existing cable guard rail along 
the east side of the road.  The increased project footprint does increase the overall project cost.  Since all 
the improvements needed for the left turn lane are within MnDOT’s right-of-way (ROW) and they have 
requested the increased turn lane length, it is anticipated that MnDOT will cover the additional project 
costs.   
 
We have submitted our final plan set to MnDOT for their review and approval.  Once they approve the 
final plans, the City can advertise the project for bids.  I am requesting council authorization to advertise 
the project for bids contingent on MnDOT’s approval of the final plans.  We anticipate their approval 
before the end of May.  This would allow the advertisement for bids to start prior to your June 20th council 
meeting. 
 
Once the bids are opened, MnDOT will prepare the final agreement with the City for the project.  The final 
agreement will include the final cost sharing amounts for MnDOT and the City.  This agreement and 
approval of the low bid will be brought to the City Council for approval before a contract is awarded.  It is 
anticipated that this will be at your July meeting.  The council may want to consider a special council 
meeting to approve the agreement and award the project in late June or early July to expedite the project.   
 
We should know the bid opening date and potential award schedule in time for the June 20th council 
meeting to determine if a special meeting is needed. 
 
I will be attending the May 16th council meeting to discuss the project and answer any questions the 
council may have. 
 
ah 
c: Glenn Anderson, City of Mora 
 Joe Kohlgraf, City of Mora 
 
x:\ko\m\mora0\169235\1-genl\14-corr\turn lane memo 051223.docx 



Item No. 9b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: May 11th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director and Kelly Christianson, Accountant 
RE: Road Grader Payment Request, CIP and Project Transfer Amendment 

 
SUMMARY 
Staff received approval to purchase a 2011 John Deere 772GP grader for the price of $154,500.00.  At 
this time, the current funds set aside are lower than the purchase price. A transfer of funds is needed 
to pay for the equipment in its entirety. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
In 2022, an opportunity came forward to purchase a new-used grader to replace the existing 
equipment that was not currently scheduled for replacement. Due to the repairs that will be needed, 
the decision was made to purchase a used machine at a fair price. Funds were not fully available at 
that time, and financing was examined but found not feasible. The unfunded balance needed for 
payment is $60,500.  The actual cost of the Street Sweeper is $51,251 lower than originally budgeted. 
An additional $9,249 is needed and proposed to be used from the Medium Duty Dump Truck Future 
Improvement Fund account due to no state bids being honored in 2024 for the dump truck.  Staff are 
proposing to transfer these CIP and corresponding project transfer line items for fulfillment of the cost 
of the grader would have a zero ($0) net effect on current budgets.  
 

 
 



Memorandum 

5/12/2023  2 

 
 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Do nothing and absorb the cost into existing street budget. 
 

2. Approve the Capital Improvement Plan amendment, and corresponding Interfund transfers, to move 
unused Street Sweeper CIP#3121-2019-05 funds ($51,251) and Medium Duty Truck CIP#3121-2019-13 
funds ($9,249) to Road Grader CIP#3121-2019-01 ($60,500).  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends approving amendments to CIP and corresponding Interfund Project Transfers in Streets 
Equipment CIP. 
 
 



[Type text] 
 

 
April 2023 

 
During the month of April, 2023 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office contract cars responded to or initiated 468 
calls for service within the City of Mora. The most frequent calls for service were Medical Emergencies (75), 
Traffic complaints/violations (129), and suspicious persons/occurrences (22).  
 
KCSO contract cars conducted extra traffic patrols as part of the state funded Minnesota statewide Toward 
Zero Death campaign targeting distracted drivers and cell phone use. 
 
 
Contract deputies received continuing education/training in the following areas: 
 

 
- Liability Issues in Emergency Vehicle and Pursuit Operations 
 
- Best Practices in Mental Health Crisis Response 

 
 

 
 
 
 
The Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office continues to proudly serve the citizens of Mora within Kanabec County. 
The Sheriff’s Office encourages any and all community members to contact our office with any questions, 
comments, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sergeant Dylan VanGorden  #3104 
 
 

https://www.nexportcampus.com/PATROL/TrainingPlanEnrollmentsMVC/SectionRequirementRedirect.nex?tpEnrollment=f43798f5-ba63-49f1-af64-2366ca8070bf&requirement=e95bb7de-c067-4acb-8790-2f4ab52c304e


Printed On: 05/05/23 08:22CAD Summary Report

Kanabec County Sheriff's Office

04/23 Total

911 Hang-ups-Abandoned-Open 
Line

22 22

Agency Assist 11 11

Alarms All (Home, Business, Bank, 
misc)

19 19

Animal-All Other 8 8

Assault 4 4

ATV- Complaints-Accidents-Citations 1 1

Child Custody Issues 2 2

Civil Assist 6 6

Civil Process 1 1

Crim Sex 3 3

Disorderly Conduct 2 2

Domestic Disturbance/Assaults 5 5

Drug calls - All 2 2

DTP 4 4

Fire- Mora Area Fire Calls 1 1

Fires - All Others 1 1

Foot Patrol 4 4

Found - animals, property, etc 5 5

Fraud 7 7

Harassing communications calls 3 3

Hospice Deaths 1 1

Information and misc calls 11 11

Jail Medical 1 1

Juvenile calls excluding tobacco, 
drugs, alcohol

1 1

Juvenile Tobacco complaints 1 1

Maltreatment 6 6

Medical - Drug Overdoses 2 2

Medical Emergency 75 75

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 1 of 3

11

27



Printed On: 05/05/23 08:22CAD Summary Report

04/23 Total

Meetings and Presentations 2 2

Mora Ordinance Violations 1 1

Motorist Assist calls 1 1

Neighborhood Disputes 5 5

Noise - including loud music, parties, 
etc

2 2

POR- Predatory Offender calls 1 1

Public assist calls 7 7

Records checks 3 3

Road Hazards 2 2

Robbery 1 1

Scams 6 6

Secure Helipad 8 8

Stolen 1 1

Suicide threats-attempts 1 1

Suspicious- persons, vehicles, and 
occurrences

18 18

Theft-not vehicle 6 6

Threats 2 2

Tobacco compliance checks 1 1

Traffic / Driving complaints 2 2

Traffic Accident 3 3

Traffic Violation 11 11

Transport - Inmates 3 3

Trespassing complaints 2 2

TZD -All Towards Zero Death Traffic 
stops

1 1

Unwanted person 4 4

Vehicle off Road 1 1

Violation of Court Order 5 5

Warrant Entry and Arrests 3 3

Weather - Monthly Test 1 1

Welfare Check 9 9

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 2 of 3

22

10

109

11



Printed On: 05/05/23 08:22CAD Summary Report

04/23 Total

Total 322 322

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 3 of 3

468



DRAFT

Park Board – 05/09/2023 Page 1 of 2 

City of Mora, MN 
PARK BOARD 

Meeting Minutes 

May 9, 2023 

Present: Steven Holcombe, Alison Holland, Sam Pioske, Curt Sammann, Kyle Shepard 
Absent: None 
Staff Present: Joe Kohlgraf, Jeff Krie 
Others Present: None 

1. Call to Order.  Chair Pioske called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call.   All present.

3. Adopt Agenda.  Motion by Holland, second by Shepard to adopt the May 9, 2023 meeting
agenda as presented. All present voted aye.  Motion carried.

4. Minutes.  Motion by Shepard, second by Holcombe to approve the April 11, 2023 meeting
minutes as presented. All present voted aye. Motion carried.

5. Open Forum. No one showed up to speak at the open forum.

6. Trees. Krie share with the board that the city received a request to see if the Park Board and
the city would be interested in funding and planting fruit bearing trees/shrubs in the city parks
or trails.  Krie and Sheppard also shared questions that were brought up regarding this request.
Board had a good discussion on the subject and discussed tree/shrub options.  Sammann felt it
would help community appeal for marketing.  Sheppard shared he found a couple grants that
might be available to help with cost. Kohlgraf shared that he does not have an arborist on his
staff for proper care but could investigate this for training options.  Sammann asked if this could
be an opportunity for a summer youth program. Kohlgraf also shared that staff could look into
budgets to see if a seasonal employee could be hired on to take care of this program and other
with the possibility of having flower baskets downtown main street and or to help with upkeep
of other areas of parks. Holland suggested the priority to be replanting of any trees that are cut
down in our parks before this program.  The board discussed options on where to acquire trees.
The board unanimously agreed that staff should look into further details and the hope is to go
forward with this project pending funds available.  

7. Fall Fest.  Krie shared with the board the Event Detail sheet and what changes have occurred.
Krie also shared with board some activities that are available for rental and aske them to discuss
at the next meeting.  Pioske asked if some items could be purchased instead of rental to help
with future cost.  Krie shared he could look at those options.  Sheppard shared he would like to
see more games than one large activity like the moon walk.  Sheppard asked what is required of
sponsors.  Krie shared that it varies on sponsorship, some supply everything and some the city
supplies the activity and needs the sponsors to provide volunteers and prizes for the activity.



DRAFT

Park Board – 05/09/2023  Page 2 of 2 

Discussion turned to if sponsors want to fundraise or raffles.  Kohlgraf shared that this could be 
investigated for clarification.     

 
8. Reports.   

a. Kohlgraf: Parks are open, and mowing will start. Water line will be looked at to install at 
the dog park, possible streetlight this year.  Looking at garage to see if there are some 
items that could be taken down to the dog park for activities for dogs.  Maintenance on 
trails, look at budget for seal coating.  Park inspections are taking place.  Responded to 
Sheppard, summer help starts in June. Lions park bathrooms could be open in the next 
week or two.  Put a portable potty put at JC Ballfields and the Library Park will have one 
soon.      

b. Krie: Getting MAC ready for the upcoming season, staffing looks good.  Music in the Park 
grant can start May 15.   

c. Sammann: Some holes at the Dog Park if they could be filled.  Any status on Fox Run 
Grant. 

d. Holland: None 
e. Pioske: None 
f. Holcombe: None   
g. Sheppard: When does summer help start?  Heard many positives on parks and trails.   

 
9. Adjournment.  Motion by Sheppard, second by Holcombe to adjourn the meeting. All present 

voted aye.  Meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Sam Pioske, Chair                                                               Jeff Krie, Secretary 


	05162023 City Council Agenda
	City of Mora Kanabec County, Minnesota

	item 4a - 04182023 CC Meeting Minutes
	item 4b - April - May 2023 City Claims List
	Item 4c - Gambling Permit Lions Club
	Item 4d - 1 Specail Event Permit Lindquist Auction
	Item 4d - 2 Special Event Permit Lindquist Personal Property Auction
	item 4e - 1  Accept Donations
	item 4e - 2 Resolution Accepting Restricted Donations 2023-526
	item 6b - 1 Juneteenth Staff Report
	item 6b - 2 - Establish Juneteenth as a City Holiday Resolution No. 2023-521
	item 6c- 1 Capital Street Plan Financial Management Plan Staff Report
	item 6c- 2 Ehlers Financial Management Plan FMP and Storm Proposal
	item 8a - 1 2022 Community Survey Staff Memo
	item 8a - 3 2022 Community Survey Resolution No 2023-522
	item 8a- 2 2022 Community Survey Final Report
	item 8b - 1 CUP School Solar 200 9th St City Council Staff Memo
	item 8b - 2 CUP School Solar 200 9th St - Site Plan
	item 8b- 3 CUP School Solar 200 9th st City Council Resolution 2023-523
	item 8c - 1 CUP School Solar 118 9th St City Council Staff Memo
	item 8c - 3 CUP School Solar 118 9th st City Council Resolution 2023-524
	item 8c- 2 CUP School Solar 118 9th St - Site Plan
	item 8d - 1 Landscape & Driveway Deposit Fee Forfeiture and Transfer of Funds
	item 8d - 2 Landscape & Driveway Deposit Fee Forfeiture Attachment
	item 8d - 3 Landscape & Driveway Deposit Fee Forfeiture Attachment
	item 8e - Maintenance Agreement Kanabec County Roads Resolution No. 2023-525 526
	item 9a - Hwy 65 Turn Lane Memo 051223
	item 9b - Road Grader Payment Request, CIP Amendment and Interfund Transfer Amendment
	item 10a - 1 April report 2023
	item 10a - 2 April totals
	item 10b- 1 May 9, 2023 Park Board Meeting Minutes



